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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR 

THE LUCAS COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  
COLLECTION OF REFUSE, RECYCLABLES AND YARD WASTE 

 

ADDENDUM #2: Released 3- 9-11 
 

This Addendum #2 to the Lucas County Solid Waste Management District’s RFP for 
Collection of Refuse, Recyclables, and Yard Waste provides answers to questions 
received as of March 2, 2011.   
 

Q.  1. The introduction makes a statement of “communities that 
agree to participate and have enough households to opt in.”  How 
many homes are required to opt-in? 

 

Response:  Non-subscription communities (including the City of Toledo) will 
choose to “opt in” as an entire community.  We have revised the City of 
Maumee request for proposals with an effective starting date of August 1, 2012.  
Additionally, we are seeking responses to an alternative proposal to match their 
current level of service for years 2 thru 5.  For subscription communities, the 
basic service has been revised to include Vendor billing of customers and 
Vendors are encouraged to include costs in proposal to allow a certain 
percentage of households to “opt out”.  For the opt out option, the Vendor shall 
note a process for the Vendor to notify all residents via letter and allow a certain 
number of days to respond, if they wish to opt out.  This notification shall also 
indicate a method of discontinuing current hauler arrangements and 
transitioning to the new Vendor system while considering a phased approach to 
bring on residents. The district will assist with this process.  

 

Please use new cost sheet included as part of this addendum for the City of 
Maumee (Alternate Bid) starting August 1, 2012 for four years in addition to C-
2.1 where Year 1 shall be deleted.   

 

Please replace C-2.2 cost sheets of original RFP for subscription communities as 
noted. 

 
Q. 2.       Will the Hoffman Road landfill accept waste from the other 
communities?  If so, what is the cost per ton? 
 
Response:  No.   
 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Q. 3.       Who is the District’s designated recycling processing 
location?  Will the District pay for the processing fees?  Does this 
facility current accept and process single stream recyclables? 
 
Response:  The current location is at the Kuhlman Facility located at 444 
Kuhlman Drive, Toledo, OH 43609.  The Vendor is not required to pay the 
processing fees for recycling.  Yes, the facility currently accepts single stream 
recyclables. 
 
Q. 4.       Please provide the historical numbers of work order for 
cart delivery and maintenance over the last 12 months? 
 
Response:  Please note that 2010 was the first year of the automated program 
and citizens who did not specify a size preference were delivered 96 gallon 
carts.  Those individuals were allowed to “swap” carts once after initial delivery.  
We have no good data in regard to actual maintenance and delivery 
requirements for the future.   
 
Q. 5.       When did the City purchase the fleet of trucks and carts?  
When was this equipment placed into service?  Please provide the 
mileage for each truck the City is offering for sale?  Who provided the 
City an appraisal of $200,000 each truck to be sold?  Of the 40 trucks 
how many are used for waste collection and how many are used for 
recycling collection? 
 
Response:  The trucks were purchased in 2009 and placed into service starting 
in December, 2009 by staggered dates until March, 2010.  Current mileage of 
the trucks is attached in Exhibit “A”.  The City of Toledo had two appraisals 
performed on the trucks, one by Bell Equipment and the other by Best 
Equipment.  Those appraisals ranged from $175,000 - $218,000.  $200,000 is 
being utilized for the appraised value of the trucks.  The City of Toledo currently 
has 27 refuse routes and 9 recycle routes.  The extra trucks are used as needed. 
 
Q. 6.       Please provide us the organizational chart for the 
customer service department?  How is this department currently 
staffed?  Are these employees bound by a collective bargaining 
agreement?  If so, please provide?  Please provide the historical call 
volume per day for the last 52 weeks?  Will the City consider retaining 
this responsibility? 
 
Response:  There is no organizational chart for the call center.  There is 
currently a call center located at our Toledo Solid Waste Department which 
consists of 4 personnel.  Additionally we have a call city hall number that 
answers all city calls including refuse issues which consists of 9 employees and a 
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Manager. The call center at Solid Waste is currently staffed with temporary 
personnel.  These employees are not bound by a collective bargaining 
agreement.  The call city hall staff is bound by a collective bargaining agreement 
from another union.  Actual weekly call volume information is attached as 
Exhibit “B”.  No the City will not consider retaining the call responsibility. 
 
Q. 7.       Billing – Does the District not have a utility in which to bill 
customers?  Having a contractor bill for a City wide service is 
extremely problematic because there is no mechanism for requirement 
other than to discontinue service.  The ability to discontinue service is 
not enough to maintain an acceptable account receivable.  How is the 
City currently billing and collecting for residential waste collection?  
What is the current bad debt per month over the past 12 months? 
 
Response:  The City of Toledo currently utilizes their water/sewer/storm for the 
billing of the residential waste collection.  On average the City has a delinquency 
rate between 1.5 – 3%.  The District has the ability to certify delinquent bills to 
the Auditor for collection on the tax duplicate on an annual basis. 
 
Q. 8.       Does the City currently have an incentive based recycling 
program?  What is the City current recycling participation rate? 
 
Response:  Please see the answer to Question 20.  Everyone received carts for 
recycling.  However, we estimate that depending on the area of the City, 50-
85% of the people are actually recycling. 

 
Q. 9.       Can the City provide a spreadsheet or pdf of the number of 
customers who are serviced per day based on appendix D-1? 
 
Response:  Please see Exhibit “C”.   
 
Q. 10.   Please provide the historical bulk item work order per week 
for the last 52 weeks?  What is the expense to the customer for bulk 
waste collection?  Is there a limit to the amount of material collected 
per call-in?  Please describe the equipment and staffing that is 
deployed to handle this service requirement? 
 
Response:    Please see Exhibit “D”.  The first pickup during a quarter (calendar 
year) is free to the resident.  Additional pickups during the quarter are $50.00 
per pick up.  There is no limit of items to be collected other than those that are 
restricted from collection.  See Exhibit “E” – the Rules of the Director of Public 
Service for definition of what is collected.  A two person crew with a refuse 
packer is utilized for this type of service. 
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Q. 11.   Please provide the historic tonnage separately for waste, 
bulky and recyclables for each of the last 12 months? 
 
Response:  This was disseminated in Addendum 1 on March 2, 2011.  No 
separate information is available for bulky tonnage. 
 
Q. 12.   Please describe the City’s current cart maintenance 
program?  What is the current level of staffing and equipment to fulfill 
the service requirement? 
 
Response: The City of Toledo currently uses the original cart deployment service 
in order to perform cart delivery/maintenance right now.  The service uses four 
personnel with two vans and trailers.  
 
Q. 13.   Business license – Please describe the type of business 
license required? 
 
Response:  On page 15 of 99 of original RFP, delete 9.  
 
Q. 14.   Union employees – Are the current employees bound by a 
collective bargaining agreement?  Is so, is the contractor required to 
honor this CBA?  Please provide a copy of the current CBA?  
 
Response:  Yes the current refuse employees are bound by a collective 
bargaining agreement.  No, the contractor is not required to honor this CBA.  
Please see Exhibit “F”. 
 
Q. 15.   How much did the City pay for its current inventory of 
carts? 
 
Response:  The full cart inventory cost approximately $9.65 million dollars to 
cart the entire city.  The inventory that is at the Hoffman Road landfill cost 
approximately $55.00 per cart..   
 
Q. 16.   Section b-1.11.10 – How did the City arrive at the discount 
percentages in this requirement?  Are certain thresholds required to be 
meet before these discounts are applied?  Please describe the numbers 
of customers who are receiving these required discounts?  This 
requirement is very problematic for a contractor to implement without 
knowing a quantity of customers who could attain these services. 
 
Response: The homestead discount was prorated to match the existing discount 
provided by the City of Toledo.  A resident of the City of Toledo is required to be 
enrolled in the Homestead Exemption program and subsequently apply for a 
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discount on their solid waste bill.  Recent counts indicate that 13,500 currently 
receive the discount.  As of February 18, 2011, there are 19,751 households in 
Toledo with a Homestead Exemption.  Therefore, for purposes of this proposal, 
the Vendor should account for 13,500 with a potential to increase to 19,751. 
These values should replace the values on pages 8, 9, and 52 (Price sheet C-
1.1). This is only valid for the vendor-bills the customer option (Price sheet C-
1.1). 
 
Q. 17.   Section b-1.12.1 – Please describe the current level of yard 
waste collection in Toledo?  Please providing staffing and equipment 
resources in place? 
 
Response:  No structured yard waste collection program exists within the City of 
Toledo.  However, the City of Toledo currently collects only items that are 
contained in a refuse cart or those bagged or tied for bulky refuse collection. 
 
Q. 18.   Section b-2.1.17:  How will cart warranty issues be handled 
by the district?  Would the District submit the warranty request since 
ownership resides with the District? 
 
Response:  The City of Toledo or District will continue to own the carts in the 
City of Toledo.  Therefore, the Vendor would receive the benefits of the 
warranty with ownership by Toledo and the District (by agreement between the 
City and District). The vendor will fill out all paperwork and provide 
documentation for warranty requests then District will submit if required by the 
cart vendor.  
 
Q. 19.    Section b-2.3.1:  Do all carts currently in service have RFID 
and serial numbers recorded? 
 
Response:  Approximately 95-97% of the carts currently have RFID tags.  The 
carts that do not have RFID tags would be those that were deployed during the 
pilot program. We are in the process of ensuring that all carts have RFID tags. 
Other than the pilot carts, the City has records linking all serial numbers and 
RFID numbers for each cart. In terms of the database from cart delivery that 
matches each address to a serial number and RFID, no changes have been 
made to the original delivery database based on cart swaps.  
 
Q. 20.   Please provide an itemize description of unit pricing the 
residents are currently charged for service? 
 
Response:  $15.00/month for refuse; or $8.50/month if residents recycle; or 
$5.00/month if residents qualify for homestead exemption.  Additionally if a 
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resident requests more than one quarterly bulk pick up they are charged $50.00 
for each additional collection.  
 
Q. 21.   Please provide a copy of the City’s solid waste and recycling 
collection expenditure and revenue budget for the last two years? 
 
Response:  See Exhibit “G”. 
 
Q. 22.   Question deadline of March 1, 2011 – Will the City allow 
questions after the pre-bid meeting?  This will be needed depending 
on the intent of the City’s response. 
 
Response:  Yes.  In order to ensure responses for inclusion in the bid submission 
process, only questions submitted prior to March 15th will receive a response as 
part of a final addendum. 

 
Q. 23. We are requesting the Lucas County Solid Waste 
Management District (“District”) extend the bid due date for all of the 
additional communities, other than the City of Toledo to April 22, 2011.   

 
 Contracts that are ending in May could be extended with 

those communities to allow for this extension allowance by 
the District and provide the possibility of better bids for those 
communities.   

 
Response:  All proposals are due on March 24, 2011. 

 
Q. 24 Will the District allow bidders to only bid on communities 
that make business sense for them or is the District requiring bidders 
to submit bids for all specified communities?   

 

 If yes, what is the impact in the District review of the bidder’s 
submission? 
 

 Will the District consider the bidders submission to be 
incomplete or “not-as-responsive” as another bidder who 
submits pricing on all of them? 

 
Response:  Vendors may complete proposals on any portions desired.  Each 
community will be given the opportunity to choose whether or not they 
participate as well as the options requested in the request for proposals. 
Vendors will not be considered “not-as-responsive” if all communities are not 
priced out.  
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Q. 25. The continuing paragraph, from page 6 of 99, on page 7 of 
99 states the District will be releasing an RFP for construction of a 
single stream MRF; when does the District anticipate releasing the 
RFP? 
 
Response:  The current schedule for release of a request for proposals for a 
materials recovery facility is unknown, however, it is anticipated to occur within 
the next 12 to 18 months. 

 
Q. 26. Trucks:  The City uses the Sonrai RFID chip; if the bidder 
meets the reporting requirements outlined in Form B-2.5, but does not 
use the Sonrai system, will this be acceptable? 

 

 Is the bidder required to provide the system they will use at 

the time of the bid submission and how the reports will be 

generated? 

 What are ages of the trucks listed in Attachment D-2? 

 
Response:  Vendors are not required to use the existing software on the trucks, 

however, the proposals should include provisions of how the reporting 

requirements will be achieved. The RFID chips in the carts are standard Ultra 

High Frequency RFID tags.   All trucks were purchased in 2009. 

Q. 27. Direct Billing – Under the 5th bullet the specification states 
“…customers will receive a 40% discount…” on page 9 of 99 it states 
40%; and then on page 52 of 99 it states 60% of the above Basic 
Service Package Prices” please clarify? 

 
 The first bullet states, “the District would have the ability to 

certify delinquencies for tax lien recovery on an annual basis”; 
when would the bidder receive payment for the collection of 
the bad debt placed on the tax liens? 

 
 Is the County Auditor willing to do this?  This could have a 

major impact on the price per unit the bidder submits for this 
option.  Please clarify.  

 
Response:  Toledo residents with a homestead discount of 40% will pay 60% of 
the rate that others pay. This is only valid for the vendor-bills the customer 
option (Price sheet C-1.1). In accordance with the Ohio Revised Code, the 
District has authority to certify delinquencies to the County Auditor by the second 
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Monday in September.  If the delinquencies are not paid, those amounts will be 
collected the following January or February, along with the regular tax collection.  
The County Auditor will assist the District in this process.  
   
Q. 28. Recycling Participation Incentive:  Please clarify how the 
District will evaluate the program offered?   

 
 What are the key items the District is looking for in an 

incentive program? 
 

 What will distinguish one program over the other? 
 

 How will the District determine what pricing reduction or 
increase should occur in the bidders pricing if the District 
awards a different plan? 
 
 If the cost of implementing the District’s program is more 

than the bidders proposed plan; will the District cover 
those costs?  How will you know what those costs 
are? 

 
Response:  An incentive program should be fair in that it rewards customers 
for recycling in a reasonable manner.  Proven results and experience will 
provide the District with a basis to determine whether or not a particular 
program is viable.  The incentive recycling program proposal should be 
specific in indicating how customers will benefit.  The bid forms request 
pricing for the Vendor to provide the program versus the District simply using 
data from the Vendor to do the program directly with another company.  The 
District may proceed without an incentive program, however, should one be 
added in the future, the Vendor shall provide access to the data.      

 
Q. 29. Bulky Waste Collection:  What is the current number of 
customers that participate in bulk item collection per quarter now (on 
average)? 

 
 How many trucks does the City currently use for this 

collection? 
 

 What is the annual tonnage for those items? 
 

 What is the current rate for those that request additional pick-
ups during that quarter? 
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Response:  Please see Exhibit “D”.  On average, the City uses 2-4 trucks daily 
depending on the number of bulky requests.  The trucks utilized also service 
“cul-de-sac” areas that we do not place on an automated truck route due to the 
size of the truck.  $50.00 for each occurrence over the first request in the 
quarter is charged to the resident. 
 
Q. 30. Item 3) subparagraph iii), Please clarify by example the 
formula the District is using to apply the fuel charge?  Typically, fuel is 
applied to the full per unit rate. 

 
 Subparagraph iv) Please clarify the reason for applying 80% 

of CPI to the pricing?  Normally, it is applied to the full price 
per unit.  Please clarify. 
 

 Does the CPI increase apply to the Homestead pricing? 
 

 What is the index the District will use for the CPI increase? 
 

Response:  Fuel price increases only affect fuel costs for the vendor and do not 
affect labor or capital costs and so are only applied to a percentage of the total 
cost. The CPI increase applies to the percentage of the rate that is not adjusted 
by the fuel cost increases. The percentage reduction for Homestead discounts 
would be prorated to the base rate. The contractor and district will agree on a 
CPI index to use.     
 
Q. 31. Title of Waste Materials and Recyclable Materials:  Does 
this apply to the City of Toledo’s residential waste even though the 
waste is being disposed in the City of Toledo’s landfill; or is this only for 
the other communities? 

 
Response:  Yes, the title of waste materials and recyclable materials applies to 
City of Toledo waste as well. 
 
Q. 32. Section B-1.12: Optional Yard Waste Service Specifications 
– City of Toledo:  What is the time period the service is required to be 
provided (i.e. March – November, etc) to the residents? 
 
Response:  March 15 – November 15. 
 
Q. 33. It has been stated in meetings the communities can elect 
to except the bids submitted under this proposal or elect to reject them 
and go out on their own.  Is this a clear understanding? 
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 If this is correct, what prohibits a community from shopping 
those prices with other vendors?  Has there been any discussion 
with the communities that they will not do this? 

 
Response:  Yes, communities may chose to proceed with these proposals or not.  
This is a public proposal process and if a community chooses not to participate, it 
is assumed that they would simply go through a separate public proposal/bid 
process based on the Authority to do so.  We are not aware of any communities 
that have decided not to participate in this proposal process unless noted as “NO 
PROPOSAL” under the contract end date. 
 
Q. 34. Who is the bid to?  Lucas County, Lucas County SWMD?   
 
Response:  Proposals are being received by the Lucas County Solid Waste 
Management District.  The Board of Lucas County Commissioners are the Board 
of Directors for the District. 
 
Q. 35. RFP is for all units with 4 units and small businesses for 
each community in the District.  [There is no known small business 
count in other communities.  In fact, this service is not extended to 
small businesses in other communities] 
 
Response:  This is applicable to the City of Toledo only. 
 
Q. 36. Explain the method of tax lien recovery mentioned on p. 7.  

 Is there any way that the vendor could bill the 
City/County for the delinquent portion in order to 
reduce the ultimate cost to the residents? 

 
Response:  Notification to the District of delinquent amounts shall be on an 
annual basis such that the District has time to certify to the Auditor for collection 
by the second Monday in September as noted in response to Question #27. 
 
Q. 37. Do you have tonnage reports by month for 2010 for both 
solid waste collection and recycling in the City of Toledo? 
 
Response:  This was disseminated in Addendum 1 on March 2, 2011.   
 
 
Q. 38. Recycling incentive systems may be allowed to contract 
directly.  It is not asked for here.  Will there be another direct bid for 
the Recycling Incentive Services? 
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Response:  Proposers are encouraged to submit a proposal including a recycling 
incentive program. If a recycling incentive service program under direct contract 
with the District is desired, it will require a separate solicitation process.  
 
Q. 39. Carts are listed as 48 and 96 gallon on p 9.  Are there also 
65 gallon carts? 
 
Response:  The initial deployment included 65 gallon carts.  However, the City 
has since eliminated the 65 gallon carts as an option for it’s residents. 
 
Q. 40. What is opt-in percentage for other communities? 
 
Response:  The District is modifying the request for proposals to indicate 3 levels 
of allowable percentage of subscription community households to opt out.  See 
response to Question # 1. 
 
Q. 41. Will residents still be able to take items themselves to 
Hoffman Road LF as an alternative to bulk collection? 
 
Response: Yes the City of Toledo residents are allowed to bring items to the 
landfill themselves.  They are, however, required to pay the appropriate fees. 
 
Q. 42. Will Recycle disposal site have RFID reader download 
capability?  Is this the City/County’s responsibility? 
 
Response:  The current recycle center does not have this capability, nor will the 
City or County be responsible for this in the future. The City trucks are currently 
outfitted with cellular modems to transmit the RFID data live. The vendor will be 
responsible for paying the monthly cellular data plans if they choose to utilize the 
existing system. 
 
Q. 43. Are the other communities providing their carts?  No 
direction on the provision of carts.    
 
Response:  Vendors shall include pricing to include carts for the other 
communities.  
 
Q. 44. Jerusalem Township is currently in their first year of a 
contract.  Will this be excluded from the RFP? 
 
Response:  Yes, “NO PROPOSAL” for Jerusalem Twp. shall be noted. 
 
Q. 45. Swanton Township is under contract 
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Response:  Correct, the request for Swanton Twp. shall be based on a contract 
end date of October 31, 2011. 
 
See revised listing of communities as follows:   
 

Community Eligible Units Current Service Contract End Date 

Waterville Twp 550 Waste Management May 31, 2011 

Richfield Twp 583 Archbold Refuse June 30, 2011 

Maumee 5,500 Allied Waste July 31, 2011 

Toledo 95,500 City Crews August 31, 2011 

Swanton Twp 1,281 Waste Management October 31, 2011 

Whitehouse 1,500 Village Crews  

Berkey 127 Subscription  

Harding Twp 370 Subscription  

Providence Twp 1,100 Subscription  

Spencer Twp 850 Subscription  

Springfield Twp 7,100 Subscription  

Sylvania Twp 10,000 Subscription  

Washington Twp 1,101 Subscription  

Waterville 2,013 Stevens 
June 1, 2012  

- NO PROPOSAL 

Monclova Twp 4,090 Allied Waste 
July 31, 2013  

- NO PROPOSAL 

Sylvania 5,700 Allied 
August 31, 2013  

- NO PROPOSAL 

Oregon 6,677 Waste Management 
October 31, 2013  

- NO PROPOSAL 

Holland 536 Village Crews   NO PROPOSAL 

Ottawa Hills 1,706 Village Crews   NO PROPOSAL 

Jerusalem Twp 1,602 Subscription   NO PROPOSAL 

Harbor View 70 Allied 
Dec 31, 2013  

- NO PROPOSAL 
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Q. 46. How many actual addresses are there in the City of Toledo?  
 
Response:  Toledo currently services approximately 95,500 households. 
 
Q. 47. Will the address data and the cart information be validated 
before contract begins? 
 
Response:  The City of Toledo is working diligently to ensure that a valid 
database is established.  Finalization of this project has not yet been determined.  
Therefore, we do not have 100% confirmation that the issues will be completely 
resolved prior to a contract start date. 
 
Q. 48. Homestead exemption:  if the purpose is to credit senior 
citizens, shouldn’t the City pick this up in their disposal contribution? 
The pricing sheets indicate two different “vendor charges” for either 
“vendor” recycling services or “district” recycling services. See pages 
52 or 53. 
 
Response:  The City of Toledo is already taking all the refuse as their 
contribution.  No further contributions by the City are contemplated at this time.  
As far as the different pricing on the incentive recycling, it is contemplated that 
the Vendor would still need to provide reports if the District had an agreement 
directly with an incentive program company. 
 
Q. 49. There are many disparities between the Maumee bid sheets 
and the Lucas County documents. Which one are we bidding? 
 
Response:  A new bid form as been included as part of this addendum for the 
alternate bid for Maumee. For the standard bid, use the Lucas County 
specifications.  
 
Q. 50. If the communities surrounding Toledo (and within Lucas 
County) accept this pricing, is the service going to be the same as is 
written in the City of Toledo specifications? 
 
Response: Each community can choose different options as outlined in the RFP. 
The service will be determined by the communities involved and it may not 
necessarily be the same. Please see p. 10-11 in RFP. 
 
Q. 51. If the contractor is responsible for cart management, is the 
County prepared to maintain sufficient inventory or parts and new 
carts to cover replacement? 
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Response:  The vendor shall be responsible to maintain sufficient inventory, 
parts and new carts for replacement. They will receive the current cart inventory 
at the beginning of the contract.  
 
Q. 52. Will County of City reimburse contractor for Bad Debts 
annually or, is contractor’s relief for bad debt to have a lien placed on 
property? 
 
Response:  See responses to Question #s 7 and 27.  
 
Q. 53. How will disputes be handled for invoicing of “Bulk items”. 
Residents can claim someone dumped material at their curb, or that 
there were no bulky items.  
 
Response:  Vendor will handle customer service matters directly. 
 
Q. 54. What if contractor purchases trucks and find the 
maintenance records to be inconsistent with the condition of the truck. 
Is a commitment made to purchase equipment where-is, as-is upon 
submitting their bid? 
 
Response:  The trucks and maintenance records can be reviewed as indicated in 
Addendum #1 on March 2, 2011.   
 
Q. 55. Would the City consider “restricting” parking along the 
streets, in the neighborhoods where trash and recycling is being 
collected, from the hours of 7:00am till 5:00pm. 
 
Response:  No, however the Rules of the Director will be applicable. 
 
Q. 56. As contractors prepare their bids, they are considering the 
purchase of 40 City owned vehicles for $8,000,000. Question, if our bid 
is prepared with the assumption we will be purchasing the trucks, and 
another party comes along, offering more than $8M, will the City sell to 
the Hauler being awarded the contractor or will they sell to the party 
making the premium offer? That would require us to purchase 
significantly more expensive vehicles to perform the contract.  
 
 
Response:  This proposal only allows for the purchase of the trucks at the stated 
price.  The proposal will not be evaluated on the basis of paying more for the 
trucks, however, we will consider the requested rates on the bid forms. The City 
would consider selling less than 40 trucks to the vendor if necessary. The City of 
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Toledo and the District recognize that the purchase of the fleet is a key 
component in these bids and will not jeopardize this process in any way.    
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City of Maumee (5,500 HH) – Alternate Bid – Current Collection Specifications 

Please see Attachment F of Original RFP (pages 84 thru 99) for detail 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

SECTION A: RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION 

A.1 Weekly residential solid waste collection 
including bulk items. (Three Item Limit) 
(Excludes governmental fees) 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

A.2 Each additional item beyond three at  
a residence (includes transport and  
disposal) (Excludes governmental fees) 

$_______/ 
Item 

$_______/ 
Item 

$_______/ 
Item 

$_______/ 
Item 

$_______/ 
Item 

A.3 Each additional carryout location   
(Excludes governmental fees) 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

A.4 Weekly residential recyclables  
collection 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

SECTION B: SCHEDULED UNLIMITED REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

B.1 Two weeks of unlimited collection 
including bulk items 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

B.2 One week of unlimited collection 
including bulk items 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

$_______/ 
Year 

SECTION C: SEASONAL YARD WASTE COLLECTION AND PROCESSING 

C.1 Bag charge charge per kraft paper bag  
if purchased from contractor or local  
vendor.          

$_______/ 
Bag 

$_______/ 
Bag 

$_______/ 
Bag 

$_______/ 
Bag 

$_______/ 
Bag 

C.2 Residential subscription $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

SECTION D: MUNICIPAL FACILITY REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

D.1 2-yard wheeled dumpster 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

D.2 4-yard wheeled dumpster 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

D.3 8-yard dumpster 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

D.4 20-yard rolloff container 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

SECTION E: MUNICIPAL FACILITY COMMINGLED CARDBOARD AND OFFICE PAPER 

E.1 2-yard wheeled dumpster 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

E.2 4-yard wheeled dumpster 
(price includes government fees) 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

$_______/ 
Load 

 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

CURRENT GOVERNMENTAL FEES (MAUMEE ALTERNATE BID ONLY) 
(Please circle whether fees are charged per ton or per cubic yard)  
 
1.   Federal       $__________________________  per  Ton, Yard 
 
2.   State (EPA, DNR, etc.)    $__________________________  per  Ton, Yard 
 
3.   Lucas County Solid Waste Distr.  $__________________________  per  Ton, Yard 
 
4.   Host Community   $__________________________  per  Ton, Yard 
 
5.   Other (please list below)  $__________________________  per  Ton, Yard 
 
List Other Fees: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Springfield Twp: 7,100 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 

 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Sylvania Twp: 10,000 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 

 
 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Washington Twp: 1,101 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Providence Twp: 1,100 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Spencer Twp: 850 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Harding Twp: 370 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Berkey: 127 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 



Addendum #2 – LCSWMD Collection Proposal 

March 9, 2011 

Swanton Twp: 1,281 HH 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

BASIC SERVICE PACKAGE      

Collection of Waste Once per Week, 
Recycling Collection Once Every Other 
Week using Vendor provided containers 
and Bulky Waste Collection Once per 
Quarter and Vendor bills customers 
directly – Includes Disposal at vendor 
chosen facility 
 

5% OPT-OUT 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

15% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

25% OPT-OUT $_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for vendor 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for District 
provided recycling incentive system 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for Weekly 
Yard Waste collection (Billed directly to 
Customers)   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

Incremental Price Addition for 
Recycling Collection Once per Week   

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

$_______/ 
Unit/Qtr 

 
LANDFILL THAT MATERIAL WILL BE SENT TO:_______________________ 

 
 



EQUIPMENT METER REPORT

SORTED BY COMPANY AND EQUIPMENT NUMBER

PAGE:  1

DATE:  03/03/2011 10:233104.rpt

CITY OF TOLEDO FLEET OPERATIONS

The totals for each group and for the report are the sum of the YTD meter readings.

FISCAL YTD 

READING

LTD

READING

CURRENT

READING

FUEL

MTR

MTR

TYPE
LICENSECLASSDEPTMODELMAKEYEAREQUIPMENT

COMPANY:  001 - CITY OF TOLEDO ACTIVE FLEET

 19391 21742600  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8050 M Y  19391

 16542 17422601  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ6964 M Y  16542

 1764 02602  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8057 M Y  1764

 15235 15752603  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7458 M Y  15235

 16318 13042604  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7737 M Y  16318

 14297 14122605  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7738 M Y  14297

 16510 15582606  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8065 M Y  16510

 13457 14922607  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7740 M Y  11910

 14781 15422608  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7736 M Y  14781

 12003 15592609  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7739 M Y  12003

 13993 16592610  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7734 M Y  13993

 12686 11232611  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7735 M Y  12686

 15866 16602612  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7742 M Y  15866

 15704 15502613  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7870 M Y  15704

 12836 13982614  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7741 M Y  12836

 11626 11672615  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7871 M Y  11626

 12332 18022616  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7873 M Y  12332

 12433 11162617  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7874 M Y  12433

 12683 13982618  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7879 M Y  12683

 13338 15752619  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7875 M Y  13338

 13641 13972620  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7872 M Y  13641

 12340 15162621  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7876 M Y  12340

 13120 14892622  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8064 M Y  13120

 13200 19842623  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7880 M Y  13200

 13570 16912624  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8052 M Y  13570

 12438 7212625  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7878 M Y  12438

 12930 12962626  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7877 M Y  12930

 7381 21022627  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8051 M Y  7381

 13214 15662628  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8053 M Y  13214

 12492 13302629  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8058 M Y  12492

 12483 16062630  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ7881 M Y  12483

 11737 14372631  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8056 M Y  11737

 12223 02632  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8059 M Y  12223

 12771 14782633  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8060 M Y  12771

 13121 15872634  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8063 M Y  13121

 13161 14922635  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8055 M Y  13161

 12821 9102636  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8062 M Y  12821



EQUIPMENT METER REPORT

SORTED BY COMPANY AND EQUIPMENT NUMBER

PAGE:  2

DATE:  03/03/2011 10:233104.rpt

CITY OF TOLEDO FLEET OPERATIONS

The totals for each group and for the report are the sum of the YTD meter readings.

FISCAL YTD 

READING

LTD

READING

CURRENT

READING

FUEL

MTR

MTR

TYPE
LICENSECLASSDEPTMODELMAKEYEAREQUIPMENT

 15865 14972637  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8068 M Y  15865

 11538 12442638  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8067 M Y  11538

 11722 11582639  2010 AUTOCAR ACX64 01/231001 141DZZZE4Z OZ8066 M Y  11722

VOLTAGE:  0TONS:  0KILOMETERS:  0MILES:  56,307HOURS:  0COMPANY  TOTALS:  



EQUIPMENT METER REPORT

SORTED BY COMPANY AND EQUIPMENT NUMBER

PAGE:  3

DATE:  03/03/2011 10:233104.rpt

CITY OF TOLEDO FLEET OPERATIONS

The totals for each group and for the report are the sum of the YTD meter readings.

VOLTAGE:  0TONS:  0KILOMETERS:  0  MILES:  56,307  HOURS:  0  REPORT TOTALS:

REPORT PARAMETERS:

SORT:  COMPANY THEN EQUIPMENT NUMBER

EQUIPMENT NUMBER RANGE:  2600   to   2639

MODEL YEAR RANGE: ALL YEARS

ECO  COMPANY RANGE:  ALL COMPANIES

DPN  DEPARTMENT RANGE:  01/231001  to  01/231001

EQC  EQUIPMENT CLASS RANGE:  ALL CLASSES

SHP EQUIPMENT SHOP RANGE: ALL SHOPS

STE EQUIPMENT SITE RANGE: ALL SITES

MAK EQUIPMENT MAKE RANGE: ALL MAKES

MOD EQUIPMENT MODEL RANGE: ALL MODELS

EBC EQUIPMENT BILLING CODE RANGE: ALL BILLING CODES

EMG EQUIPMENT MONITOR GROUP RANGE: ALL MONITOR GROUPS

STA  EQUIPMENT STATUS RANGE:  ALL STATUSES

EUC EQUIPMENT USE CODE: ALL EQUIPMENT REGARDLESS OF USE CODE

v05052008
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7/21/10      EXHIBIT ―E‖ 

RULES AND REGULATIONS ISSUED BY THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING REFUSE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION 

 

ARTICLE I - Authority and Definition of Terms 

Section 101-Authority.  These regulations are issued by the Director of Public 

Services with the approval of the Mayor of the City of Toledo under the authority of the 

Toledo Municipal Code Section 963.23 and Section 104 of the Toledo City Charter. 

Section 102—Definitions.  Unless specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning 

of terms used in these regulations shall be defined in Toledo Municipal Code Section 

963.01. 

 

ARTICLE II - Collection Service 

Section 201- Schedule of Collection.  Solid Waste collection is generally 

provided once per week and recycling collection is provided every other week.  Solid 

Waste days are assigned by color and recycling collection weeks are assigned by 

number.  Refuse and recycling collection will be provided from the point of pick-up, 

either at curb or alley line for all properly containerized material.   

Refuse and recycling collection is designed for residential service to the City’s 

residents.  Some small businesses may be serviced along with multi-unit dwellings of 

four and under.   

Section 202—Holiday Schedule.  Holidays observed by the City of Toledo are 

New Year’s Day (observed), Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President’s Day, Good Friday, 

Memorial Day, Independence Day (observed), Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran’s 

Day, Thanksgiving Day, the Friday after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve (observed), and 

Christmas Day (observed). 

After each city holiday, refuse and recycling collection days will leap ahead to the 

next business day and remain on that day until after the next holiday.  This will repeat 

11 times for all city observed holidays.   

 Section 203 — Number of Containers.  Each household is provided with one 

refuse container (gray) of either 48, or 96-gallon size and one recycling container (blue) 

of either 48, or 96-gallon size.  All refuse and recycling items must be contained in the 
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container or containers or it will not be collected, unless exemption is granted per Article 

III.  Additional containers may be purchased by the resident as provided in Section 204 

of these Rules and Regulations.  

Ownership of the containers shall remain with the City.  The containers shall not 

be removed from the assigned location to which the containers were delivered without 

authorization from the City. The occupants of the assigned location shall be responsible 

for the proper use of the containers such that the containers will not be damaged, 

destroyed or defaced.  Damage to a container shall be immediately reported to the City. 

A property owner who obtains a replacement container shall pay for the replacement 

containers at the cost outlined in Section 204.  

Section 204 - Purchase of Additional Container.  The Solid Waste Division is 

authorized to sell to any resident who may require the use and service of one (1) 

additional automated collection container.  Additional automated collection containers 

shall meet all city specifications. 

A resident must complete an application form provided by the Solid Waste Division to 

purchase one (1) additional forty-eight (48), or ninety-six (96) gallon container at the 

current contract price plus any administrative overhead.  This amount is payable by 

check or money order.  The Solid Waste Division reserves the right to assess an 

additional collection fee for each additional container placed at the point of collection.  

The resident may pick them up at the division’s warehouse facility. 

 Section 205 - Replacement of forty-eight (48), or ninety-six (96) Gallon 

Containers. 

A.  Lost or Stolen Containers: 

If a container is missing the resident shall report this to the Solid Waste 

Division.  The resident must file a police report and provide the police 

report to the Solid Waste Division.  A replacement container will be made 

available to the resident at no cost. 

Each City provided container has a serial number that ties the containers 

to the property address.  In the case of a stolen container, it is the 

responsibility of the property owner to file a police report in a timely 

manner.  A copy of the police report must be provided to the Division of 

Solid Waste at 2411 Albion, Toledo, OH 43606.  The City will only replace 

one stolen container or set of containers for free to each household.  

The City will not service a damaged container if it may damage collection 

equipment. 
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B.  Damaged containers: 

If a resident’s container is damaged beyond repair as a result of the 

collection process, or is defaced or burned after determining it was no fault 

of the resident, a supervisor will notify the warehouse for a replacement 

container at no cost to the resident. 

C.  Damaged, defaced or burned containers 

Residents whose container is damaged, defaced or burned, after it has 

been determined that it was the fault of the resident, will be charged for 

replacing the container.  The replacement container remains the property 

of the city even though the resident is charged for the replacement. 

D. Unauthorized Container 

Any container found at an address that was not authorized by the Division 

of Solid Waste will be removed. 

 Section 206 -  Container Collection Location.  Containers must be placed at 

the point of collection by no later than 7:00 am on collection day or no earlier than 5:00 

pm the day preceding collection. 

 Containers must be removed from the point of collection by 7:00 pm the day of 

collection. 

 Containers shall be placed on the curb, tree lawn, alley line, traveled roadway 

with the lid facing out and container wheels towards the house. Containers must be at 

least three feet from objects such as parked cars, utility poles, trees, mailboxes or fire 

hydrants, and at least two feet between each container.  Containers may not be placed 

under a low hanging tree or wire. 

Failure to follow these rules may result in your refuse and/or recycling not being 

collected. 

 Section 207 - Acceptable Refuse Container & Weight Limits.   Refuse and 

recycling shall be placed in City provided containers.  Refuse shall be placed in the gray 

container and recycling shall be placed in the blue container.  All refuse and recycling 

shall be contained inside the container for collection, with the lid completely closed.  The 

weight of the container shall not exceed the weight identified on the container. 

Failure to follow these rules may result in your refuse and/or recycling not being 

collected. 
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 Section 208 – Types of Waste Collected.   Household waste shall be bagged 

and placed in City provided refuse container.  All regular household waste will be 

accepted when properly containerized in City provided containers.   

 Hypodermic needles must be placed in an impermeable container (SHARPS 

container or plastic laundry detergent type) with the lid tightly secured, then placed in a 

City provided refuse container. 

 Section 209 - Collection of Oversized or Bulky Items.  Oversized or bulky 

items require a scheduled pick-up made at least 48 business hours in advance of 

collection day.  This type of collection is limited to once per quarter.  Residents 

requesting an additional collection during the same quarter shall be charged $50.  

These items include: 

 Loose items of five (5) or more (such as lumber, brush, etc.) are to be tied in 

bundles not exceeding six (6) feet in length and two (2) feet in diameter and not 

weighing more than 40 lbs.   

 Rugs must be rolled and tied at both ends and be no longer than six feet in 

length. 

 Couches, furniture, large TV’s, etc. 

Section 210 – Prohibited Items. 

No batteries will be collected. 

No tires will be collected. 

No hazardous wastes (oil, paint, chemicals) will be collected.  

No building or construction materials resulting from commercial work will be 

collected. 

No major automobile components will be collected. 

No white-ware items, such as stoves, refrigerators, hot water tanks, washers and 

dryers will be collected. 

No metal box springs will be collected. 

No metal doors will be collected. 

No computer monitors will be collected. 
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 Section 211 - Collection of recyclable materials.  The City of Toledo offers 

curbside single stream recycling of materials.  Recycle materials are to be placed 

directly in the container without being bagged.  Single stream recycling means that all 

recyclable items are placed in one (1) container.  The items are transported and 

separated at a materials handling facility.  The allowable materials collected by this 

program are:  Plastic:  milk jugs, soda bottles, laundry detergent bottles; Metal:  

aluminum and steel cans; Glass:  all colors of glass bottles and jars;  

Paper/Cardboard:  newspapers, magazines, phone books, junk mail, high grade paper 

(office paper, copier paper & notepad paper), boxboard (cereal boxes, dry food boxes & 

shoe boxes), corrugated containers (cardboard). 

 Section 212 – Recycling Participation Definition.   Recycling 

participation is defined as participating in the curbside recycling program on a monthly 

basis.  Failure to place recyclable materials at the curbside on a monthly basis may 

result in your removal from the recycling incentive fee program or the resident is subject 

to receive a Notice of Liability and subject to a fine under Section 961 of these rules. 

Section 213 - Collection of Yard Waste.  Yard waste will only be collected if it 

fits into your regular refuse container.  Yard Waste means all garden residues, leaves, 

grass clippings, shrubbery and tree prunings, tree trimmings and other plant waste 

generated as a result of gardening, landscaping, or similar activity. 

 Section 214 - Collection of Holiday Trees.   The Division of Solid Waste is not 

responsible for the removal of holiday trees.   Holiday trees may be recycled at a 

recycling center or designated drop off locations. 

Section 215 – Unauthorized Use of Recycling Container. Residents are not 

allowed to place unrecyclable material in the recycling container. A list of acceptable 

recyclable materials is listed on the top of the recycling container and/or available on the 

City website.  

If unauthorized, unrecyclable materials are placed in recycling container, the 

resident is subject to receive a Notice of Liability and subject to a fine under Section 961 

of these rules and/or removal from the recycling incentive fee program. 

Section 216 - Exchanging Different Container Sizes.  If a property owner is 

not satisfied with the delivered refuse or recycling container size, the property owner 

may request a different size. Available container sizes at the initial deployment are 48, 

64 and 96 gallon. The first exchange after initial deployment from December, 2009 – 

June, 2010 will be at no cost.  For future exchanges, a fee of $25 is to be paid.  A form 

is to be completed and exchange fee paid in advance prior to the exchange.  

Exchanges will be made by the resident at the City’s Warehouse Facility.  The container 

being exchanged must be cleaned prior to exchanging. If the container is deemed not 
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usable, the resident will be charged the full price of a replacement container.  The 

property owner will be charged the $25 fee for any subsequent container size 

exchanges.  Container size exchanges may occur beginning June 1, 2010.  The 

container sizes available after initial deployment will be 48 or 96-gallon sizes only.  

ARTICLE III –  Exemption Service - Solid Waste Accommodation Program (SWAP) 

Section 301 – Accommodation Program.  A resident must take the following 

steps when applying for exemption service: 

  1.  Request the packet of information and forms for participation in the 

SWAP program can be obtained by either having it mailed to the home or downloading 

it directly from the City’s website. 

  2.  Complete the Medical Certification Consent form and provide that to 

your physician.  Return the physician’s certification to the Solid Waste Division. 

 

ARTICLE IV- Service for Commercial Businesses, Institutions and Multi-family 

Dwellings of Five (5) Units or more. 

Section 401 - These facilities must obtain their own provider for refuse and 

recycling collection unless agreed to by the Director of Public Service or his/her 

designee. 

 

ARTICLE V - Collection Conditions 

 Section 501 - Collection Conditions.  Refuse and/or recycling may not be 

collected under the following conditions: 

(a) Where the above-stated regulations have not been complied with. 

(b) Where containers are frozen to the ground and where contents are frozen in 

containers. 

(c) Where the containers are badly damaged or in hazardous condition. 

 Section 502 - Misplaced Property.  The City of Toledo assumes no 

responsibility for property placed in containers or placed at collection point. 
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ARTICLE VI – Obstructing Vehicles 

Section 701 – Procedure for Removing Obstructing Vehicles.   

In the ordinary course of Solid Waste collection, when any container is blocked by a 

vehicle, the Division of Solid Waste driver or supervisor shall tag the blocked container 

and note the reason the division was unable to service the container.  If a vehicle 

continues to block the container, the Division of Solid Waste Commissioner or his/her 

designee may cause the appropriate enforcement agency to remove such vehicle. 

 

ARTICLE VII – Violations. 

 Section 901 – Penalty.  Whoever violates any provision of the regulations herein 

is guilty of a minor misdemeanor and shall be fined not more than $100, or the violator 

may be subject to a Notice of Liability under Section 1726.08 (e) of the Toledo Municipal 

Code and thereby result in a fine of $75 for the first offense, $150 for the second 

offense, and $300 for all additional offenses. 
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